


6. Certificate of Posting.

7. Correspondence.
1. 2-1-2022 Ralph Handel-Receipt of response from District Manager
2. 2-9-2022 NWMA-February NWMA meeting
3. 2-11-2022 Shelby Fleshood-Public Records Request
4. 2-28-2022 NV PERS-2022 Liaison Officer Conferences

8. Appointments.

9. Old Business.

10. New Business.
1. Discussion of potential electrical upgrades to the facility yard.
2. Discussion and possible action regarding District adoption of Churchill County's

policy regarding retirement incentive and separation incentive plans.
3. Discussion and possible action regarding District Manager, Nancy Upham's

evaluation.

11. District Manager's Report and Operations Review.

12. Board Members' Report.

13. Any Requests for Future Agenda Items.

14. Expenditures.

February 2022 expenditures. 

15. Public Comment.

16. Adjournment.

I, Nancy Upham, on behalf of the Churchill County Mosquito, Vector and Noxious Weed 

Abatement District Board of Trustees, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused to be posted, a 
copy of this notice of public meeting, at approximately 9 AM on the 4thth day of March 2022, 
at the following location: 



Disclosures: 

1. District Office 7400 Reno Highway, Fallon, Nevada 

2. Churchill County Law Enforcement Facility, 73 N Maine St. Fallon, Nevada

3. Churchill County Administrative Office Complex, 155 N Taylor St. Fallon, Nevada

4. Churchill County Website@https:/lchurchillcounty.org

5. The State of Nevada Website@https://notice.nv.gov/

* Churchill County Mosquito, Vector, and Noxious Weed Abatement District is an equal opportunity provider
and employer.

* Any witness who is testifying before a public body is absolutely privileged to publish defamatory matter as a

part of the public meeting, except that it is unlawful to misrepresent any fact when testifying.

* The contact person for the information is District Manager, Nancy Upham at (775) 423-2828.

Accommodations: 

Churchill County Mosquito, Vector, and Noxious Weed Abatement District will make all reasonable effo1is to 
assist and accommodate physically handicapped persons desiring to attend. Persons who are disabled and 

require special assistance may contact the Churchill County Mosquito, Vector, and Noxious Weed Abatement 
District Board of Trustees in writing at 7400 Reno Highway, Fallon, Nevada 89406, or by calling (775) 423-
2828. 

Procedures: 

* The public meeting may be conducted according to rules of parliamentary procedure.

* Matters set upon the "consent agenda" may be discussed and considered as part of new business as necessary.

* Persons providing public comment will be asked to state their name for the record.

* Persons providing testimony during a public hearing will be sworn as witnesses.

* The Churchill County Mosquito, Vector, and Noxious Weed Abatement District Board of Trustees reserves
the right to restrict participation by persons in the public meeting where the conduct of such persons is
willfully disruptive to the people's business.

* Appointments need to be made to the District Manager at least four (4) working days before the meeting date.

* If desired, the public is allowed to speak with a three-minutes maximum after each action item.

* Items on the agenda may be taken out of order.

* The public body may combine two or more agenda items for consideration.

* The public body may remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion relating to an item on the agenda at
any time.

Public Records: 

* An audio tape recording of this meeting will be made and preserved for period of one (1) year.

* Copies of supporting materials provided to the Churchill County Mosquito, Vector, and Noxious Weed
Abatement District Board of Trustees are available upon request.



Churchill County Mosquito, Vector and Noxious Weed Abatement District 
Board of Trustees 

Churchill County, Nevada 
7 400 Reno Highway 

Fallon, NV 89406 
Meeting February 10, 2022 

OPEN MEETING SESSION 

1. Call to Order

Chairwoman, Christy Lattin called the meeting to order at 5:30 PM. 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Chairwoman, Christy Lattin 
Vice Chairman, Michael Spencer 
Trustee, Marion Jonte, Jr 
Trustee, Tom Hutchings 
Trustee, Cynthia McGarrah 

Legal Counsel, Ben Shawcroft 
District Manager, Nancy Upham 
Assistant Manager, JD MacKay 
Board Secretary, Melania Sagi 

Public Present 

None 

2. Pledge of Allegiance:

All stood for the Pledge of Allegiance. 

3. Public Comment:

None 

4. Review and Adoption of the Agenda:

District Manager, Nancy Upham requested the agenda be accepted as published. 
Trustee, Marion Jonte made a motion to adopt the agenda as published. Vice Chainnan, 
Michael Spencer seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. 

5. Discussion and Approval of Minutes:
Mr. Spencer made a motion to accept the minutes from January 13111, 2022. Mr. 

Jonte seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. 

6. Certificate of Posting:
Ms. Upham stated the agenda was posted in accordance with NRS. 



7. Correspondence:

1. 12-13-2021 Phyllys Dowd-Pay increase by $50. Ms. Upham explained that
she felt this did not need to be agendized as it was such a small increase. Ms. Dowd

has more than proved her competency and Management is very happy with her work.

2. 01-04-2022 Dave Mendiola-Questions regarding Humboldt County Contract. 

Mr. Mendiola reached out to the District for insight into our Mosquito Abatement 
program. He will be comparing the cost of operating their own program versus 

contracting the work out. Management has been maintaining correspondence with 
him to answer any of his questions. 

3. 01-07-2022 Ralph Handel-Notice of intent to negotiate a successor
Agreement. Mr. Handel included several requests with his intent. Management, with
assistance from Ms. Dowd, was able to answer his inquiries within the given
timeframe.

4. 01-11-2022 SPR-Annual Worker Compensation Payroll Audit. This is a 
yearly payroll audit typically contracted through POOL/PACT. 

5. 01-12-2022 Dave Patterson-Target Specialty Products' Reno Workshop
2022. These workshops are productive, especially if the technicians need CEU's.

6. 01-24-2022 Holland & Hart-Fee Increase. Ms. Upham will continue to try
and be as efficient as possible when interacting with the District's legal representative

to help limit to costs.

7. 01-25-2022 Department of Taxation-Tax rate increase. Notice of County 
property tax increase.

8. 01-25-2022 Georgia Vasey-Carson City, Question regarding public education 

outreach. Ms. Vasey is interested in instituting a similar weed education program in 
Carson City as the District's. She was reaching out for infom1ation on the program. 

8. Appointment:

None 

9. Old Business:

None 

10. New Business:

1. *Closed Session Pursuant to NRS 288.220* Discussion of negotiations. Ms. Lattin

made a motion to move the meeting into a closed session. Mr. Spencer seconded the
motion and it passed unanimously. Ms. Lattin brought the session back into an open

meeting session.

2. Discussion of potential electrical upgrades to the facility yard. The facility lights that
illuminate the yard only work by turning them on and off at the breaker. They should
be wired to a timer and photocell however, after having a professional investigate it

was discovered that they are not. Administrative Assistant, Melania Sagi, is working

on getting estimates to pennanently fixing the issue. This topic will be tabled until the
estimates can be presented.



3. Discussion and possible action regarding aerial contract with Frey Spray for aerial
application costs of $780 per hour. The cost is the same as last year. Mr. Jonte made a

motion to enter a one (1) year contract with Frey Spray for $780 and hour. Mr.

Spencer seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.

4. Discussion and possible action regarding District adoption of Churchill County's

policy regarding retirement incentive and separation incentive plans. Legal Counsel,
Ben Shawcroft, stated that the County utilized a waiver in tandem with their early
retirement incentive policy. The Board requested that this topic be tabled until the
waiver can be analyzed.

5. Discussion and possible action regarding 2021 Annual Report. Ms. Upham went into
detail explaining the information included in the attached 2021 Annual Report. Mr.
J ante asked for an update on the roof repair. During the December stonn the same
repaired spot leaked, and 3 other leaks were discovered. Ms. Sagi let Mr. Jonte know
that the roof repair company did come back out and fix the spot they had worked on
before.

Mr. Jonte asked for information on the IT service and equipment update. Ms. 
Upham responded that the service was working better than expected. She let the 

Board know that the program for the technicians was still being developed and she 
hoped to have it in place before the technicians returned to work. 

Mr. Jonte asked if Churchill County had Eastern or Western Equine Encephalitis. 
Ms. Upham answered that there is the potential for Western Equine Encephalitis but 
not Eastern or, at least, it has not been seen in the area since she has been here. 

Western Equine Encephalitis, St. Louis Encephalitis, and West Nile Virus are what 
the chicken blood gets tested for. 

11. District Manager's Report and Operations Review:

12. Board Member's Reports:
Ms. Lattin updated the Board that there will be two open seats in the next 

election. She requested Ms. Sagi to make a post and get the word out so that interested 
parties could make their intentions known to the voters. 

13. Any Request for Future Agenda Items:

None 

14. Expenditures:
January 2022 Expenditures 

Payroll: $22,535.28 

Expenses: $131,993.55 
Total Overall: $154,528.83 

Mr. Spencer made a motion to accept the January 2022 expenditures. Ms. 

McGarrah seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. 



15. Public Comment:

None 

16. Adjournment:

Ms. Lattin called the meeting to a close at 6:25 PM. 

SIGNATURE: Chairwoman or Vice Chairman 

DATE: 



Zimbra 

!RE: Questions 

From : Ralph Handel <rhandel@oe3.org> 

Subject : RE: Questions 

To : Nancy Upham <director@ccmosquito.org>, 
ccmosquito@cccomm.net 

L1mora 

ccmosquito@cccomm.net 

Tue, Feb 01, 2022 08:38 AM 

That information is very helpful thank you, I need payroll from last years and this year's 
shutdown only for positions not laid off. 

Thanks, 
Ralph R Handel 

peirai\l:illil 1Eng·ll1leer ILoc:ail 3 

from: Nancy Upham <director@ccmosquito.org> 
Sent: Friday, January 28, 2022 3:46 PM 
To: Ralph Handel <rhandel@oe3.org> 
Cc: Jordan Walsh <SJWalsh@hollandhart.com> 
Subject: Questions 

Ralph, 
In response to your letter received dated January 7, 2022, I am providing you with the 
following information. I believe that Melania has answered questions 1-7. As for question 
eight, it is difficult to define a "savings" to the ·District during the winter shutdown as you will 
see with details relevant to the information below. The two years that there was an actual 
"lay off", I believe the only monetary changes would be with PERS contributions and 
unemployment numbers. 

2018-2019 Staff was asked to use their accrued annual leave from 
December 17, 2018 - January 9, 2019. With this they accrued PERS contributions as if they 
were working. 

2019-2020 There was a layoff from December 10, 2019-March 2, 2020 or 
March 16, 2020 dependent on seniority. PERS contributions were affected and 
unemployment costs were paid by the District after their annual leave 
balances were expended. 

2020-2021 Staff was off work from December 14, 2020-January 3, 2021. 
2021-2022 Staff opted for a "layoff" versus using their annual leave from 

November 1, 2021-March 1, 2022. PERS contributions were affected and 
unemployment costs were paid by the District after their annual leave 
balances were expended. 

As for question nine regarding "contract work1

' completed during the shutdown period, there 
is only some electrical work and lighting repairs initiated in January 2022. 

Hope this helps. Have a nice weekend. Nancy 

Sent from Mail for Windows 
https://webmail.phonewave.net/h/printmessage?id=2970&tz=America/Los_Angeles 1/2 





To: 

From: 

Date: 

Re: 

CHURCHILL COUNTY MOSQUITO, VECTOR AND NOXIOUS WEED ABATEMENT DISTRICT 

The Board of Trustees 

Nancy Upham, District Manager 

JD MacKay, Assistant Manager 

March 8, 2022 

Discussion and potential upgrades to the facility yard. 

Administrative Assistant, Melania Sagi, has gathered estimates from electrical companies to fix and 

potentially upgrade the facility yard lights. Currently the only way to turn the lights on and off is at the 

breaker. This is inefficient and costly. With the lights off, the yard is very dark and unsecured. 

Management believes this is a necessary repair and with the upgrades it could save the District a 

significant amount in the future. 





February 22, 2022 

McFadden Electric, LLC 
514 Windmill Dr. 
P.O. Box 5148 
Fallon, NV 89407 
775-867-4507 office 
775-867-4578 fax

Re : Churchill Mosquito, Vector and Weed Control Lighting Upgrade
Fallon,Nevada 

We are pleased to provide an electrical budget proposal for the above referenced project per 
below scope of work. 

Scope of Work 

• Six (6) Replace pole mounted fixtures with LED equivalent.
• Four (4) Replace wall mounted exterior fixtures with LED equivalent.
• Nine (9) Replace 6" recessed lighting with LED equivalent.
• One (1) Lot remove time clock and transition all exterior lighting to photocell control.

Base Bid Electrical Proposal Total Cost 
(Four Thousand Nine Hundred Fifty Dollars) 

Clarifications; 
o All major equipment based per manufacturer standard lead time.
• Proposal based on normal standard working hours.
• Our proposal does not include other major equipment except as noted above.

Exclusion; 
• Any work not listed in the above scope.
• Moving of owner furniture/equipment.
• Temporary lighting/power.
• Project trailer/office.
• Design, engineering and permitting fees.
• Performance and Payment Bond.
• Independent testing fees.

$4,950.00 

Thank you for the opportunity in providing a proposal for this proposed project. Should you have any 
question, please call. Thank you 

Regards, 

Joe McFadden- Member 

----�=-:-�==-=�--=�=-==-===�--:--=-=��:=-:-�-==--=-=����-----�--------------. ..,

INDUSTRIA�g����:�i
N

&M�;'�����tl�����R�::.��NTRACTING 



















Application to Participate in 
Early Retirement Incentive Policy 

TJis request is to be submitted to the County Manager no less than four months and 
l no more than 12 months prior to the employee's proposed retirement date. 

I, hris Thom plan to retire on -:::S--"'-� �1 l I '2-- c> -Z--Z- (my
last �ay of paid status) and I wish to participate in the

1 1:8:1 Early Retirement Incentive Policy, or the
I D Separation Incentive Policy 

as a�proved by the Board of County Commissioners in December of 2015.
By die above-noted retirement date, I will have worked for Churchill County for ..!..J.... years
and I & month(s) and I will have a total amount oflaw enforcement service credit in
PE� of 2. S- years.

j 

I a�e to purchase (or have already purchased) Zc,., months of PERS service credit, with
Chwjchill County purchasing an� amount of service � ��ths) on my behalf.

If my request is approved, this document serves as my letter of resignation and retirement,
effective on the date indicated above, with my PERS retirement to begin the following day.
If my request is not approved, I am not obligated to terminate my employment on the date
indicated above. I acknowledge that I have received a draft copy of the Early Retirement
Agre�ment and General Release.

Ns~c___\ __ _
Signature

'- I 10 I ?,_--z_, 
Date







CHURCHILL COUNTY MOSQUITO, VECTOR AND NOXIOUS WEED ABATEMENT DISTRICT 

To: The Board of Trustees 
From: Nancy Upham, District Manager 

JD MacKay, Assistant Manager 
Date: March 8, 2022 

Management Report 
February 2022 

Management has been working through various planning issues. 

Management and Administrative Staff has been working through a number of planning issues such as 
ordering chemical, planning for field work, establishing this season's work priorities different from last 
year's operations, etc. The most time consuming project during this month was selecting, interviewing 
and hiring of seasonal staff. We used a few different hiring forums and had the job posted for three 
weeks. Within that time frame, we did preliminary interviews with all who had applied and if they 
seemed to be a possibility, we did fonnal interviews. With the twelve - thirteen applicants, we hired 
four to start. We have plans on how to utilize these seasonals to the best of the District's interests. 

We plan on having the Staff return to work Mid-March. 

If you have any questions on any of the operations, please just contact me and I will be happy to 
answer your questions. 














	SKM_C3850220309120600.pdf
	SKM_C3850220309114800.pdf



